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Delegations will find attached: 

 the request for access to documents sent to the General Secretariat of the Council on 

Monday 10 February 2025, and its complements of 11 and 26 February 2025 (Annex 1); 

 the reply from the General Secretariat of the Council dated 24 March 2025 (Annex 2); 

 the confirmatory application dated 30 March 2025 and registered on 31 March 2025 

(Annex 3). 
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ANNEX 1 

[E-mail message sent to access@consilium.europa.eu on Monday 10 February, 15:27.] 

 

From: DELETED 

Sent: 10 February 2025 15:27 

To: Access@consilium.europa.eu 

Cc: DELETED 

Subject: AEOI and GDPR | Access Request --- COMM 

  

Dear Council of the EU 

  

Please see attached. 

  

Best regards, 

  

DELETED  
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[E-mail message sent to access@consilium.europa.eu on Tuesday 11 February, 16:46.] 

 

From: DELETED 

 

Sent: mardi 11 février 2025 16:46 

To: TRANSPARENCY Access to documents (COMM) <Access@consilium.europa.eu> 

Cc: DELETED 

Subject: AEOI and GDPR | Access Request & Timeline --- COMM (2) 

 

Dear Council's Transparency Unit 

  

See attached timeline which complements our yesterday's Access Request capturing events from 

2011 to date in respect of FATCA. 

  

Best regards, 

  

DELETED 
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[E-mail message sent to access@consilium.europa.eu on Wednesday 26 February, 13:17.] 

 

From: DELETED 

Sent: mercredi 26 février 2025 13:17 

To: TRANSPARENCY Access to documents (COMM) <Access@consilium.europa.eu> 

Cc: DELETED 

Subject: AEOI and GDPR | AtD --- Overriding Public Interest --- Consilium 

 

Dear Council's Transparency Unit 

  

I refer to our Access to Document Request (together with the timeline) and EU Petitioners' follow-

up messages to the Commission. 

  

A recent conversation with EU FATCA Petitioners (copied in) has reminded me of the importance 

of their work at EU level and the homage paid to them by the European Parliament. 

  

I therefore attach a short supplement that I hope will focus your attention on the overriding public 

interest to full disclosure, and the fact that this will not go away until petitioners receive an 

exhaustive response to concerns raised for almost a decade now. 

  

Best regards, 

  

DELETED 
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ANNEX 2 

 

Council of the European Union 
General Secretariat 

 

 Directorate-General Communication and Information - COMM 
Directorate Information and Outreach 
Information Services Unit / Transparency 
Head of Unit 

 

 

Brussels, 24 March 2025 

DELETED 

Email: DELETED 

Ref. 25/0418 

Request made on: 10.02.2025 
Deadline extension: 03.03.2025 
 

Dear DELETED, 

Thank you for your request for access to documents of the Council of the European Union.1 

 

The General Secretariat of the Council has identified documents 13729/12, 18031/13, 16975/14, 

16975/1/14 REV 1, 16975/1/14 REV 1 COR 1, 15655/16, a GSC internal note of 7 October 2015 

on the judgment of the Court in Case C-362/14, 7074/23, 7180/23, 11287/24, 14403/24, 15364/24,  

WK 6400/2021, WK 4084/2023, WK 4085/2023, WK 4378/2023, WK 4831/2023, WK 5753/2023, 

WK 4902/2023, WK 7418/2023, WK 7474/2024, WK 15311/2023 RESTREINT UE/EU 

RESTRICTED, WK 7776/2024 and WK 7949/2024 as falling within the scope of your access 

request. 

 

Documents 18031/13, 16975/14 INIT, 16975/14 REV 1, 16975/14 REV 1 COR 1, 15655/16, 

7180/23, 7074/23, 11287/24, 14403/24 and 15364/24, are already publicly available on the 

Council’s Public Register.  
 

                                                 
1  The General Secretariat of the Council has examined your request on the basis of the applicable rules: Regulation (EC) 

No 1049/2001 of the European Parliament and of the Council regarding public access to European Parliament, Council and 

Commission documents (OJ L 145, 31.5.2001, p. 43) and the specific provisions concerning public access to Council 

documents set out in Annex II to the Council's Rules of Procedure (Council Decision No 2009/937/EU, OJ L 325, 

11.12.2009, p. 35). 
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As regards documents WK 4084/2023, WK 4085/2023 and WK 4378/2023, we refer you to the 

Council’s reply to your confirmatory application 13/c/01/23, dated 10 July 2023, which remains 

valid as far as the exceptions on the protection of the public interest as regards international 

relations and the financial, monetary or economic policy of the European Union or a Member State 

are concerned (Article 4(1)(a), third and fourth indents, of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001). 

 

Please find attached documents 13729/12, WK 6400/2021, WK 7776/2024 and the GSC Internal 

note dated 7 October 2015. 

 

You will also find attached partially accessible versions of documents, WK 7474/2024 and 

WK 7949/2024.2 However, I regret to inform you that further access to these documents, as well as 

any access to documents WK 4831/2023, WK 4902/2023, WK 5753/2023, WK 7418/2023 and WK 

15311/2023 RESTREINT UE/EU RESTRICTED, cannot be given for the reasons set out below. 

 

Document WK 7474/2024 of 24 May 2024 contains a Presidency steering note on the application 

of Chapter V of the GDPR in the context of the automatic exchange of information (AEOI) with third 

countries. 

 

Document WK 7949/2024 of 7 June 2024 contains another Presidency steering note on the same 

subject. 

 

Document WK 4831/2023 of 13 April 2023 is a proposal by the Spanish delegation for an 

amendment to the Directive on Administrative Cooperation (DAC). 

 

Document WK 4902/2023 of 14 April 2023 contains a Presidency steering note and compromise 

text for amendment of the DAC. 

 

Document WK 5753/2023 of 3 May 2023 contains a presentation made by the Spanish delegation 

of a proposal to amend DAC. 

 

Document WK 7418/2023 of 5 June 2023 contains a presentation by the Presidency on the 

interaction of the automatic exchange of tax information with third countries with the GDPR. 

 

Document WK 15311/2023 RESTREINT UE/EU RESTRICTED of 17 November 2023 is a 

classified document. The classification RESTREINT UE/EU RESTRICTED is applied to information 

and material the unauthorised disclosure of which could be disadvantageous to the interests of the 

European Union or of one or more of its Member States. It contains a Presidency steering note 

concerning the automatic exchange of tax information with third countries and its interaction with 

the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). 

 

                                                 
2  Article 4(6) of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001. 
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All of these documents address the automatic exchange of relevant information (AEOI) for tax 

purposes with non-EU countries and territories in relation to the application of the EU rules on 

protection of personal data (in particular the GDPR).  

 

They concern ongoing and future negotiations of international agreements on tax information 

exchanges between Member States and third countries. Any further disclosure of these documents 

would reveal the Union’s internal views as well as negotiation strategy in relation to complex 
ongoing and future negotiations of international agreements on tax information exchanges. 

Disclosure of the requested documents would seriously undermine the Member States’ negotiating 
position vis-à-vis third countries, since they contain information which is still under discussion 

within the Council on the approaches to be taken in the matter. It would also undermine the mutual 

trust between the parties involved, as third countries could doubt about the stability of the matters 

on which the Council’s work has not yet been concluded and would therefore increase the risk of 
jeopardising the negotiating process. 

 

These documents also address very sensitive tax policy issues that may significantly affect the 

location of business activities between the EU and non-EU jurisdictions. The issues at hand are 

economically important to many governments and citizens across the EU. Any further disclosure of 

the documents is likely to trigger unwarranted and undesirable behaviour by economic operators 

which would interfere with Member States' fiscal policy. The information contained in the requested 

documents could be used to hinder the international exchange of tax information and thus create 

obstacles in the fight against international tax fraud. Therefore, further disclosure of the requested 

documents at this stage could harm the fight against tax fraud and adversely affect the protection 

of the public interest as regards the financial and economic policy of the European Union and its 

Member States. 

 

Finally, it should be noted that discussions within the Council on the application of the General 

Data Protection Regulation to the automatic exchange of tax information are ongoing.  

 

These documents give details of progress made so far and identify the difficulties that still need to 

be addressed before the Council can reach a political agreement on this sensitive issue. Release 

to the public of the information contained in these documents would affect these discussions and 

diminish the chances of the Council reaching an agreement. 

 

To sum up, any further disclosure of the first two documents and any disclosure of the rest of these 

documents would therefore undermine the protection of the public interests as regards 

international relations3, the financial, monetary or economic policy of the EU and its Member 

States4 and the Council’s decision-making process5. 

 

                                                 
3  Article 4(1)(a), third indent of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001. 
4  Article 4(1)(a), fourth indent of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001. 
5  Article 4(3), first subparagraph of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001. 
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Having examined the context in which these documents were drafted, on balance the General 

Secretariat of the Council could not identify any evidence suggesting an overriding public interest 

in their further disclosure as the exceptions apply to all parts of these documents that have not yet 

been disclosed. 

 

Pursuant to Article 7(2) of Regulation (EC) No 1049/2001, you may ask the Council to review this 

decision within 15 working days of receiving this reply. Should you see the need for such a review, 

you are invited to indicate the reasons thereof. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Fernando FLORINDO 

 

 

Enclosures: 6 
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ANNEX 3 

[E-mail message sent to access@consilium.europa.eu on Sunday 30 March 2025, 22:06 and 

registered on Monday 31 March 2025] 

 

From: DELETED 

Sent: dimanche 30 mars 2025 22:06 

To: TRANSPARENCY Access to documents (COMM) <Access@consilium.europa.eu> 

Cc: DELETED 

Subject: Ref 25-0418 (AEOI & GDPR) | Confirmatory Application --- CONSILIUM 

 

Dear Mr Florindo  

  

AEOI & GDPR |  Access to Documents 

Your decision dated 24 March 2024 

Confirmatory Application 
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